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Winterthur, since early in the nineteenth century, has been an entity com-
posed of a country house, handsome gardens, native woods, and fertile farm
land. This interrelationship of land and buildings, all tended carefully
over the years, has produced the Winterthur that today stands in what may
some day be the last open space in northern Delaware.

The property was acquired in 1837 by James Antoine and Evelina Gabrielle

du Pont Bidermann, the daughter of Eleuthére and Irénée du Pont, founder of
E. I. du Pont de Nemours and Company. Their purchase totaled 450 acres on
which they built a home in 1839. This was the original house at Winterthur,
which was named for the Swiss city in which Mr, Bidermann's family had lived.
Mr. and Mrs. Bidermann preserved the virgin growth in the woods, farmed the
fields, and built a sunken garden adjacent to their house.

Winterthur was purchased in 1866 by Henry du Pont from his nephew James I,
Bidermann, who had inherited the estate from his parents. General du Pont
added to his land until there were 1,135 acres on which crops were grown and
stock raised, Even though busy as pre51dent of the Du Pont Company, the
General was a dedicated farmer, spending large sums on improving the soil and
experimenting with new agricultural processes, General du Pont probably
never lived at Winterthur, but his son Henry Algernon took up residence there
in 1875 following his marriage the previous year, Before moving in, however,
he had the family home enlarged and remodeled, the first change in the
structure since it was built. Again in 1884 Colonel du Pont added to the
building, and after inheriting the property in 1889 made further changes in
1902, He also continued to acquire land, and by .the time of his death in
1927 Winterthur had grown to 2,400 acres. Colonel du Pont was responsible
for the initial expansion of the Winterthur gardens. Beginning in 1902 he
and his son Henry Francis developed new areas, such as the March Bank, the
Pinetum, and the Azalea Woods, and built new greenhouses and a sunken

garden, Around 1893 Colonel du Pont acquired the nucleus of the Holstein-
Friesian dairy herd which was to become world famous.

Henry Francis du Pont inherited Winterthur in 1927, and began almost
immediately to transform his home into a museum of the American decorative
arts, For some years he had been collecting woodwork from houses built along
the eastern seaboard of this country between the seventeenth and early nine-
teenth centuries. These interiors he installed in his family home and in a
large wing which he added in 1930, and furnished them with antiques con-
temporary in date with the woodwork. Eventually the Winterthur house grew

to over one hundred period rooms with many special display areas. In 1930
Mr, du Pont established a nonprofit educational foundation with a view to-

and The Henry Francis du Pont Winterthur Museum was opened.

rooms and additions to the building, Most important of the latter Weé t%;X
section opened in 1959 which contained office space for the enlarged sta
and a series of period rooms for school children and visitors not able to e

cure appointments within the limited complement of guests in the Main MnSeum.'
IEER

338

SNOILONdl1LSNI

its operating his home one day as a museum, This transfer took place 1n 1951’“§%

The building has continued to grow since becoming a museum, with new period™‘| """
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Henry Francis du Pont Winterthur Museum contains a grig cSllectaon of
the American decorative arts spanning the two hundred yea s Xrom, thé se en—
teenth century to the early nineteenth century. In a large\
surrounded by gardens of striking beauty are examples of dome'st A
tecture, furniture, textiles, silver, pewter, ceramics, paintings, and
prints shown in almost two hundred period rooms and special displays.

Winterthur is a tribute to the early American artisan and to our country's
tradition of craftsmanship in architecture and the household arts. The
collection contains approximately 30,000 objects, ranging from the smallest
pccessory to impressive case pieces and building fagades, which exhibit the
skill of those who fashioned useful products of refinement and beauty for
the early American and his home. The domestic interiors include drawing

rooms, parlors, dining rooms, bedrooms, each complete to the finest detail.
There are also simulated outdoor settings.’

ALl of ‘thesfurniture, silver, ‘and pewter at Winterthur, with rare exceptionms,
was made in colonial America or during the first years of the young Republic.
Such household articles as rugs, lighting fixtures, and porcelains which
were imported rather than made in this country in early days are of foreign
brigin but contemporary in date with the Museum rooms in which they are seen.

The Winterthur Gardens, which surround the Museum, complement in size and
variety the furnishings.within the building. In over sixty acres of
naturalized plantings are virgin woodlands, flowering trees and shrubs, and
smaller blossoms skillfully arranged to present great bursts of color and
strlking v1stas. ¢

dlnterthur is best known for its azaleas, which were first planted in 1917
and now have reached great height. The rolling countryside lends itself to
spectacular drifts of daffodils, while the canopy of tall trees in the
pAzalea Woods filters the sunlight as it plays on the delicate blossoms.

In developing the Gardens to their present size and beauty, -Mr. du Pont
combined vision, patience, and an artist's sense of color with his vast
horticultural knowledge. He planned the Gardens himself, studied them, and
worked continuously to achieve harmonious blendings of color and tone.

Although the Gardens were laid out with meticulous care and are the product
of a truly creative effort, they appear as natural growth among the native




Winterthur Illustrated by John A, H. Sweeney, The Henry Francis du Pont

Winterthur Museum, 1963.

Winterthur in Bloom, by Harold Bruce, The Henry Francis du Pont Winterthur
Museum, 1968.

Wlnterthur Portfolio I, Richardson, Morse, Naeve, editors, The Henry Francis
du Pont Winterthur Museum, 1964,

American Furniture: Queen Anne and Chippendale Periods, by Joseph Downs,
Macmillan, 1952,

t;jngtgglcan Furniture: The Federal Period, by Charles F. Montgomery, Viking,
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7. Description

From 1952 to 1968 the Winterthur Gardens, although privately owned by Mr. du
Pont, were opened for a special tour in the spring at the same time a selection
of period rooms in the Museum could be seen without the usual appointment. Over
the years Mr, du Pont expanded the plantings until today there are more than
sixty acres in the display gardens containing almost every tree, shrub, and
flower that will grow in Delaware. An Autumn garden tour was added in 1966,

When Mr, du Pont died in 1969, all of his personal real estate at Winterthur--
the gardens, farm, and attendant buildings--were inherited by The Henry Francis
du Pont Winterthur Museum, Inc. The total acreage is now 962, Mr., du Pont
having disposed of land at the perimeter of the estate to such organizations as
the Methodist Country House, the Wilmington Country Club, and the Delaware
Museum of Natural History as future protection to the Museum and Gardens.

The Museum administration has continued to open the Gardens in the spring, but
the dairy herd was dispersed according to the terms of Mr. du Pont's will. The
Museum administration also continues to maintain the home (now the Museum)-
gardens-farm-and-woodland relationship which was essential to Mr. du Pont's plan
of developing around his home a garden to complement the collection of American
decorative arts within the building, and surrounding the whole with open fields
and woods which are an integral part of the over-all concept to give perspectivg
to the gardens and insure against the intrusion of highways and developments.
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Signiricance

trees and shrubs which have been preserved. Color and form are the hallmarks
of the Winterthur Gardens,.

The open fields that extend beyond the Gardens form a background for the
colorful blossoms and add to the feeling of spaciousness. They also serve as
a buffer against the encroachment of suburbia.
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